
 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  Contact: Metin Halil 

Committee Secretary 
Wednesday, 10 August 2016 at 10.00 am  Direct : 020-8379-4091 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Silver Street, 
Enfield, EN1 3XA 

 Tel: 020-8379-1000 
 Ext: 4091 
 E-mail: metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
Councillors : Chris Bond (Chair), Christine Hamilton, Jim Steven  
 

AGENDA – PART 1 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 
 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary, other pecuniary or 

non pecuniary interests relating to items on the agenda. 
 

3. FOOD & WINE EXPRESS, 349 BOWES ROAD, LONDON, N11 1AA  
(REPORT NO. 60)  (Pages 1 - 56) 

 
 Application to review a premises licence. 

 
4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 57 - 64) 
 
 To receive and agree the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 6 July 

2016. 
 

5. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).  
(There is no part 2 agenda) 
 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2016117 REPORT NO.

COMMITTEE :

Licensing Sub-Gommittee
10 August 2016

REPORT OF :

Principal Licensing Officer

LEGISLATION :

Licensing Act 2003

1 LICENSING HISTORY & CURRENT POSITION:

1 .1 A new premises licence was first granted at this premises on 1 1 October 2007,
naming Mr Jawaid Aslam as the Premises Licence Holder on premises licence
(LN/200700399).

1.2 On 11 May 2012, the premises licence was transferred to Mr Abdul Qadeer, the
current premises licence holder, who has also been the named Designated
Premises. Supervisor since I May 2012.

1.3

1.4

This is the first review application received for LN/200700399.

The current Premises Licence permits:

Hours the premises are open to the public: 24 hours daily

Supply of alcohol (off supplies only): 24 hours daily

1.5 A copy of a location map of the premises is attached in Annex l.

1 .15 A copy of the current premises licence (LN/200700399) is attached in Annex 2.

Agenda - Part Item

SUBJEGT:
Review Application

PREMISES :

Food and Wine Express,349 Bowes Road,
LONDON, NII lAA

WARD :

Southgate Gieen

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



2 THIS APPLICATION:

2.1 On 17 June 2016 an application was made by the Licensing Authority for the

review of Premises Licence LN/200700399.

2.2 The review application relates to the prevention of crime and disorder licensing
objective and is made because the premises have been found to be selling non
duty paid alcohol and tobacco and breaching licence conditions. The premises
were advised to submit a minor variation but no such application was submitted
by the applicant.

2.3 The authority considers that it is now appropriate, for the promotion of the
licensing objectives, to add and modify licence conditions, and suspend the
licence for a period of up to 3 months until all conditions are deemed compliant.

2.4 To date (26 August2016), the premises licence holder has not indicated an
agreement to any conditions sought or suspension period.

2.5 The review application was advertised in accordance with the requirements of
the Licensing Act 2003.

2.6 Each of the Responsible Authorities were consulted in respect of the application.

2,7 A copy of the review application and Additional lnformation is attached as Annex
03.

3 RELEVANTREPRESENTATIONS:

3.1 Metropolitan Police: Representations were received in support of this review
application, based on the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective.

3.2 A copy of the representation is attached as Annex 04.

4 PROPOSED LICENCE CONDITIONS:

4.1 The conditions arising from this review application are attached as Annex 05

5 RELEVANT LAW, GUIDANCE & POLIGIES:

Page 2



5.1 The paragraphs below are extracted from either:

5.1.1 the Licensing Act 2003 ('Act'); or

5.1.2 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State to the Home Office of
March 2015 ('Guid'); or

S.1.3 the London Borough of Enfield's Licensing Policy Statement of January
2015 ('Pol').

General Principles:

5.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee must carry out its functions with a view to
promoting the licensing objectives [Act s.4(1)].

5.3 The licensing objectives are :

5.3.1 the prevention of crime and disorder;

5.3.2 public safety;

5.3.3 the prevention of public nuisance; &

5.3.4 the protection of children from harm [Act s.a(2)].

5.4 ln carrying out its functions, the Sub-Committee must also have regard to :

5.4.1 the Council's licensing policy statement; &

5.4.2 guidance issued by the Secretary of State [Act s.a(3)].

Review:

5.5 lri reviewing a licence the Licensing Sub-Committee will consider, and take into

account, lhe complaints history of the premises and all other relevant information.

[Pol s.10.3].

5.6 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly
connected with licensable activities, for example the sale of contraband goods.

The Sub-Committee does not have the power to judge the criminality or
othenruise of any issue. The Sub-Committee's role is to ensure the promotion of
the crime prevention objective [Guid s.11.24].

5.7 There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed
premises which should be treated particularly seriously. These include the use of
the premises for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol [Guid
s.11.271.

5.8 Where reviews arise in respect of these criminal activities and the Sub-
Committee determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined,
it is expected that revocation of the licence - even in the first instance - should
be seriously considered [Guid s.11.28].

Page 3



Decision:

5.g Having heard all of the representations (from all parties) the Licensing Sub-
Committee must take such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of
the licensing objectives, The steps are :

5.9.1 to modify the conditions of the licence;

5.g.2 to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;

5.9.3 to remove the designated premises supervisor

5.9.4 to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

5.9.5 to revoke the licence [Act s.52].

5.10 ln deciding which of these powers to invoke, the Sub-Committee should so far as
possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns which the
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed
at these causes and should generally be directed at those causes and should
always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response [Guid
s.11.201.

Background Papers :

None other than any identified within the
report.

Gontact Officer :

Ellie Green on 020 8379 8543

Page 4



ñnnqx I

l

E

s0
¡a

Ståt¡on

9A

99e

69t

L]l

Our Lady

ofLourd*
RC Church

Schæl

c
t

LimæClc€

s'

$
o¿

0a

òì

a

\
BOWES ROAD E=

d'

""

IHE LIMES AVENUE

Food and Wine Express,349 Bowes Road, LONDON, N11 lAA

LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD
CIVIC CENTRE, SILVER STREET,
ENFIELD, EN1 3XE
www.enfield.gov.uk

@ Crown copyright and database rights 201 6
Ordnance Survey Licence no. 1 0001 9820

Drg.No.6800JT

Scale 1:1250

Date 2510712016e E^tF¿E*t"D,;*

Page 5



flnn 7

Sirs
J & H Licensing Gonsultants
35 Walfield Avenue
Whetstone
London
N20 gPS

Please reply to

E-mail:

Phone:
Textphone:

Fax:
My Ref :

Your Ref':
Date:

ENFIEL
Council

Rose McMurray
Licensing Unit
PO Box 57, Civic
Centre
Silver Street, Enfleld,
Middx ENl 3XH
licensing@enfield. gov.uk

020 8379 3s78
020 8379 4419
020 8379 2190
LN/200700399
JHt219
10th May 2012

Dear Sirs

Licensino Act 2003
Pr€nrfse-: Food añd W¡ne Express,349 Bowes Road, LONDON' Nll lAA

Thís letter concerns the application for a Variation of the DPS on a Premises
Licence under the Licensing Act 2003.

Please find the licence enclosed. Please check the details on the licence carefully,
the Licensing Authority is prepared to correct any of our clerical errors within 28
days of the licence being issued.

Note - Transfers
On the grant of a transfer application, any notification or permit (under the Gambling
Act 2005) in respect of gaming maqhines at the premises becomes null and void. A
new riotification or permit will need to be sought by the new holder of the premises

licence (under the Licensing Act 2003) befo¡e gaming machines may be lawfully
at the

Please be advised that the licence does not override any restrictions on trading
hours etc. that may apply to the premises in respect of planning permission and/or
Sunday trading & etc.

The terms, conditions and restrictions of the licence must be complied with
whenever the premise is used for licensable activities. Failure to comply with the
licence is a criminal offence with, on conviction, a maximum fine of Ê20,000 and/or
up to 6 months imprisonment.

¡ån Orvls
D¡rector - EnvlronmÊnt
Enfield Councll
Clvlc Centre, Sllver Street ì Phoner O2O 8379 l OOO

Enfield ENt 3XY Website: wwwenfield.gov,uk

Q) ff y", need thls document ln'another language or format call customer Servlces on o2o 8379 l Ooo, or emall enfield.cauncllc¡enfield'gov.uk

Page 6



The Licensing Enforcement Team advise as follovrls

ln order to support premises in meeting the conditions of their licence, the Licensing
Authority has produced material such as training guidance, leave. quietly signs,
refusals book, which can be found on the Enfield website by following this link:
hno://www.enfield.eov.ulddownloads/dorrynload/2316/compliance-dogu$entp
Please print the rnaterial relevant to'the conditions and use in accordancewith your
licence.

Please be advísed that a premises licence lapses if the holder of the licence : dies;
becomes a person who lacks capacity (within the meaning of the Mental Capacity
Act 2005) to hold the licence; becomes insolvent; is dissolved; or if it is a club,
ceases to be a recognised club. An individual becomes insolvent on : the approval
of a voluntary arrangement proposed by him; being adjudged bankrupt or having his
estate sequestrated; or entering into a deed of arrangement made for the benefit of
his creditors or a trust deed for his creditors. A company becomes insolvent on : the
approval of a voluntary arrangement proposed by its directors; the appointrnent of
an administrator in respect of the company; the appointment of an administrative
receiver in respect of the company; or going into liquidation.

The licence, or a certified copy of it, must be kept on the premises at all times and
must be produced on request to any authorised officer. The summary of the licence
must be prominently displayed within the premises.

Should you wish to change the operation of the premises in the future by adding
new licensable activities or by changing the hours or removing conditions then you
will need to apply for a variation of the licence. Please contact us for further advice.

You must notify the licensing authoríty of any change in the name and/or address of
either the premises licence holder or the designated premises supervisor.

The licence is subject to an annual fee, payable on each anniversary of the licence
first being granted.

The London Fire Brigade advise as follows :

The issue of capacity should be addressed in the fire risk assessment for the
premises use. This does not mean that every premises must have a capacity figure.
There should be evidence however that the responsible person has considered the
number of persons who can be safely evacuated through the available exits.

A safe capacity figure will be expected in the following circumstances:
(1) in premises that could potentially become overcrowded; for example bars, pubs,

clubs, and other places of public assembly :

(2) where an engineered solution or BS 9999 has been used to increase capacity;
(3) where capacity is risk-critical; for example where the premises use has a higher
occupancy factor than that which the building was designed for.

Where applicable, capacity should normally be inclusive of staff and performers.
Manägement should be able to demonstrate a realistic method of controlling

Page 7



please be advised that if you are playing music in your business - to staff or
customers - it is a legal requirement to obtain permission from the copyright
holders. Two organisations exist to help make sure you are correctly licensed to
play the music you want. PPL collects royalties on behalf of performers and record

iompan¡es. PR-S for Music collects royaities on behalf of songwriters, composers
and music publishers. tn most instances, a licence from both organisations is
needed to ensure all copyright holders are correetly paid for the use of their music.

lf you play music in your business, please contact PPL and PRS for Music to obtain

the right licences for you. Please visit poluk.com and qsformlrqig4¡o,m for more

informãtion on music licensing or call PPL on 020 7534 1095 and PRS for Music on
0800 068 4828.

All employers have a responsibility to p_revent illegal migrant working in the UK.

Failure to comply could lead to a penalty of up to Ê10,000 per illegalworker. Home
Office 'guidance is available at
www. úÈba. homeoffice. gov. uUem ployers/oreventilleoalworkino/

lf you require any further information, please d9 not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

-Nr
Rose McMurray
Licensing Officer

Page 8



ENFTEL,tü

Licensino Act 2003

PART A - PREM¡SES LICENCE

Granted by the Londom Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authorityt

Premises Licence Number : LN/200

Part I - Premises Details

Postal address of premises:
Premises name:

Telephone number:

Address:

Where the licence is time-limited, the
dates:

F and Wine Express

020 8920 0400

349 Bowes Road LONDON N11 IAA

limited

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by the
licence andlhe times the licence authorises.the carrying out of those
activities :

(r)

(2t

Sunday:
Monday:
Tuesday:

Wednesday:
Thursday:

Friday:
Saturday:

00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00

pOpen to the

supp Alcohol off g

Sunday:
Monday:

Tuesday:
Wednesday:

Thursday:
Friday :

Saturday:

00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00
00:00 - 00:00

Page 9



Not provided

Not provided

114 Fleetwood Roa

Mr Abdu

Dollis Hill NWIO lNN

Part 2

Name and (reg address of holder of
Name :

Telephone number:

e-mail :

Address:

Registered number of holder (where
applicable):

Not applicable

licence:

Name and (registeredl address of second holder of premises licence (where
applicable) :

Name : Nagina Qadeer

07956 556004

114 Fleetwood Dollis Hill NWlo I

Telephone number:

Address

Name and address of designated premises superuisor (where the licence
authorises the su of alcoho

Name :

Telephone number:

e-mail :

Address:

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by
designated premises supervisor (where the licence authorises the supply of
alcohol):
Personal Licence Number :

lssuing Authority :

Premises Licence first granted on 11 October 2007.

Signed: .. Date :lOth \ûay 2012.

1

London Borou of Brent

a..raaaarataraaaa

for and on behalf of the
London Borough of Enfield
Licensing Unit, Givic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield ENI 3XH
Telephone : 020 8379 3578

Not provided

Not provided

l14 Fleetwood

Mr

NWIO ,lNNDollis Hil

r

EN
'å#9,.*

Page 10



Annex I - Mandatory Conditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:
(a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect
of the premises licence, or
(b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a

perrsor,rat licence or his perconal licence is.suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or
authorised by a percon who holds a personal licence.

Annèx 2 - Conditions consistentwith the Operating Schedule

3. There shall be no adult entertainment or serices, activities or mattels
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children.

4. ,A CC¡¡ system shall be installed, operated and maintained at the
premises.

5. A panic-alarm system shall be installed, operated and maintained at the
premises.

6. Signs shall be displayed at the exit to the premises reminding
customers to leave quietly and respect the neighbours

7. Signs shall be displayed at the exit to the premises stating 'You are
enteringã drinking control area and no alcoholic drinks are to be opened on
the streets within this area.'

8. The 'Think 21' proof-of-age scheme shall be operated at the premises.

g. No children under the age oÍ 14 years shall be admitted to the premises
between 212O0 and 07:00 unless they are accompanied by an adult.

lO. The premises must be fitted with a digital Glosed Gircuit Television
(CCTV) syitem, which must conform to theiollowing points:{1) lf_the CCTV
equlpment is inoperative or not working to the satiefaction of the Police or
Liêeñsing Authority, the premises shall not be used for licensable activities
unless with prior agreement from the Police; (2) Cameras must be sited to
observe the entrance doorc both inside and outside, the counter areas and all
alcohol displays; (3) Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots
of the heads and shoulders of all people enteriñg the premises i.e. capable of
identification - not less then 12ATo of screen; (4) Gameras viewing till areas
must capture frames not less then 50% of screen; (5) Gameras overlooking
floor areas should be wide angled to give an overview of the premises. They
must be capable of deûection i.e. not less than 10% of screen; (6) Be capable
of visually confirming the nature of the crime committed; (7) Provide a linked
record of the date, time and place of any image; (8) Provide good quality
images - colour during opening times; (9) Operate under existing light levels
within and outside the premises; (10) Have the recording device located in a
secure area or locked cabinet (ll) Have a monitor to review images and
recorded picture quality; (12) Record images as near to real time as possible;

Page 11



(13) Recorded images must be of sufficient quality that persons can be
identified from the recorded pictures as well as the live view; (f 4) Be regularly
maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention; (15)
Comply with the Data Protection Act (DPA) and any applicable British
Security lndustry Association (BSIA) codes of practice; (16) Have signage
displayed in the customer area to advise that GCTV is in operation; (17) Be
operated by the correct procedures, to ensur,ean evidence trail is recorded
and can be retrieved for evidential'purposes; (i18)rDigital images must be kept
for 31 days; (19) Checks should be frequently undertaken to ensure that the
equipment performs properly and that all the cameras are operational and a
log kept; (20) The medium on which the imageshave been recorded should
not be used when it has become apparent that the quality of the images has
deteríorated; (21) Access to recorded images should be restricted to those
staff that need to have access in order to achieve the purposes of using the
equipment; (221All access to the medium on which the images are recorded
should be documented; (23) Police will have access to images at any
reasonable time; (24) The equipment must have a suitable export method, e.g.
CDTDVD writgr so that the police can make an evidential copy of the data they
require. This data should be in the native file format, to ensure that no image
quality is lost when making the copy. lf this format is non-standard (i.e.
manufacturer proprietary) then the manufacturer should supply the replay
.software to ensure that the video on the CD can be replayed by the police on
a standard computer. Gopies must be made available to Police on request;
(25) Disclosure of the recorded images to third parties should only be made in
limited and prescribed circumstances, law enforcement agencies,
.Prosecution agencies, relevant legal representatives and people whose
images have been recorded and retained.

11. lf the premises operate past 01:00 'Raid Control' must be installed: (1) A
time delay safe is fitted which must be secured to the fabric of the building or
counter irea; (2) A separate covert reat time camera is fitted above the front
door facing inwards. (Raid Gaml; (3) A smoke note system is installed; (a) A
training package is provided and all staff must be fully trained in the Raid
Controls use; (5) Minimise cash in till by use of the time delay safe.

12. An atarm system to EU 50131 (or if existing system to 834737) must be
installed at the premises. A panic button facility must be provided at the
counter.

13. A personal licence holder is to be present on the premises and
supervise the sale of alcohol, throughout the permitted hours for the sale of
atcohol. This person should be fluent in English in order to properly conduct
the sale of alcohol and more importantly to refuse the sale if so required.

14. There must be 2 members of staff on duty at all times the premises are
open.

15. All alcohol displays must be in full view of the counter erea.

16. The till must be capable of prompting staff to ask for lD to ensure there
are no under age sales.

Page 12



17. The premises must operate the Iocal authority or similar proof of age
scheme and display the relevant material. Only passPoÉ, photographic
driving licences and lD with the P.A.S.S. logo'must be accepted.

18. The toading and unloading from vehicles supplying either goods or
seruices to the front or the rear of the premises shall not take place between
the hor¡¡rs of 20.00 and 0t 00. This shall include all deliveries

19. Staff shall actively discourage patrohs from congregating in the vicinity
of the premises.

20. A method of documenting refused sales for example a "refusal book or
diary" must be kept at the point of sale, or one at each point of sale Where
necessary, or recorded electronically on the till. This must be completed on
each separate occasion that an individual is refused a sale of alcohol; where'
the individual does not provide the identification or.the individual is
suspected to be under age.

21. The owner/licensee/manager must undertake routine monitoring of the
refusals records.

22. All staff who make sales of alcohol must receive regular training
(induction and refresher) this should include: (1) Application of the "Think 21"
or "Challenge 21" proof - of- age scheme or similar; (2) Penalties for selling to
an under age percon; (3) Asking for appropriate photographic identification;
(4) The refusals process; (5) Any other information as deemed appropriate.

23. Training must bq documented and records kept for at least 2 years.

24. Any training provided must be provided and verified by a competent
person for example the designated premises supewisor.

Annex 3 - Gonditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority

Not applicable

Page 13



Annex 4 - Plans

furm¡l.pl¡m ÀnL¡Rc Éoçb Lâ,!!
1ûtl fc¡,r,¡ ßcAb

Ñ(''w 'É1ílt'¡í:^l(
çgrbCr' tu ¡/ ¡A A

+:

ErIt

-Tì 
1l'\ r| ',r-tv¡

ìl

j
r)
6

(

lc
I

L_
¿i1 gfr,vr.

?

ñÔ
bR
d¡;

ú1,

¿

!

t
I
1

eJ
¿rl
It

I
t
t
ù
7

l?Jf
ít

I
¿í..*
LÚ

ù
d

T
d

J
ô
ô,
ú

I

J
0

d
tr

tltrlDo¡

VIG

I {öO\.J

FÊ'Jr f

Çlrtt-c-t l"f

J
g
ùq

-I r
.r( ó? r,
L'

ti
a 21 .öq¡b

d
I
úJ

¿
ü:
-4j

Ò

L{
IT

i

Page 14



Annqx 3
Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate

under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form
lf you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. ln all

cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use
additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.
I Gharlotte Palmer Senior Licensi Enforcement Officer

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 5l of the Licensing
Act 2003 for the premises described in Part I below

Part I - Premises or club premises details

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if
known)

Mr Abdul Qadeer

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known

LN/200700399

Parl 2- Applicant details
lam

Please tick yes
1) an interested party (please compiete (A) or (B) below)

a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises

b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the
premises

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A)

below)

n

n

X

1_

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Food and Wine Express, 349 Bowes Road

Post town

London

Post code (if known)

N11 1AA

F LIC 1A

Page 15



(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please tick
Mr tl Mrs n Miss ! Ms Other title

(for example, Rev)

Surname

I am 18 years old or over

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

First names

Please tick yes

n

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mailaddress
(optional)

(B) DETATLS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

2 F LIC 1A

Page 16



Name and address

Charlotte Palmer
Licensing Authority
London Borough of Enfield
PO Box 57
Civic Centre
Silver Street
EN1 3XH

Telephone number: 020 8379 3965

lmer@enfield.gov.ukE-mail address: charlotte.pa

(c) DETATLS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxes

1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

Please state the qround(sl for review: (please read guidance note 1)

Enfield Licensing Authority is seeking a'review of the premises licence on the
grounds that the premises have been found to be selling non duty paid alcohol and
tobacco and breaching licence conditions.

This review is primarily based on the prevention of crime and disorder, licensing
objective. The review application is to amend the licence conditions.

Background I nformation :

PIease provide as much information as possible to support the application
(please read guidance note 2)

Complaint and Visit Historv of Premises

The licence for this premises was transferred to the current licence holder and the
DPS varied in May 2012.'

Detailed below is the history of the premises this year:

15103116 - Complaint received in relation youths causing anti-social behaviour in the
area and possible under age alcohol sales taking place at this and other nearby
premises.

18/03/16 - 22.20 - Out of hours Licensing Enforcement Officers (EVGA/PK) entered
the premises to carry out a full licence inspection. Met with Mr Naveed lmtiaz, a
none paid family member who claimed he was just helping out from 1Opm. He was
unable to advise officers of whether the details of the DPS/PLH were accurate. The
following 11 breaches were found:
Condition 7 - no drinking control zone sign on display
Condition I , no think 21 poster on display

3 F LIC 1A

Page 17



Condition 9 - advised no unaccompanied children after 9pm
Condition 13 - no personal licence holder on site
Condition 14 - only 1 member of staff present, should be 2
Condition 16 - till not capable of till prompt
Condition 20121- no refusals book
Condition 22123124 - no evidence of staff training
Officers completed an inspection report and gave 7 days to address the breaches
and advised of offences and potential review.
Mr lmtiaz advised that the premises licence holder works during day until 1Opm.

During the visit, a female customer loitered at the premises entrance with a lit
cigarette and came into the premises with it to pay for goods. The officers advised
her and Mr lmtiaz of smoking offence. Mr lmtiaz phoned the premises licence holder
and one of the officers spoke to him and then his wife on the phone. She advised
that the premises licence holder could not speak English. Advised of anti social
behaviour complaint, youths congregating, underage drinking in area, requested to
be extra diligent. See Appendix I

06.04.16 - Trading Standards sent a letter to the premises in relation to alleged
under age sales. See Appendix2.

22.04,16 - 21:42 - Licensing Enforcement Officers (EVG/CPX) entered the premises

with HMRC and a sniffer dog and dog handler from Operation Wagtail to check the
premises for any non-duty paid tobacco or alcohol. The Premises Licence Holder Mr
Abdul Qadeer was behind the counter. Officers advised him of the purpose of their
visit, and he said he didn't have anything like that. The sniffer dog found a packet of
Golden Virginia hand rolling tobacco behind the counter on a shelf. Officers asked
Mr Abdul Qadeer whether he had any more, he said no. The offices continued the
search and a carrier bag was found 

-behind 
empty crisp boxes on top of the:chiller

cabinet, and another carrier bag on a top shelf near the non-chilled alcohol. The bags
were full of foreign labelled/non-duty paid tobacco. Further packets were found
hidden in a safe. ln total there was 30 x 50 g Golden Virginia rolling tobacco and 77
x 50 g Amber Leaf rolling tobacco. Before finding the second bag, Mr Abdul Qadeer
was asked again whether he had any more illegal tobacco. Again he said no. The
alcohol was checked by the HMRC officer and it was discovered that ?2 x 70 cl

Smirnoff Vodka and 12 x70 cl Glens Vodka had fake VAT back labels. These were
seized along with the tobacco. Mr Abdul Qadeer insisted that he purchased the
tobacco from a cash and carry and paid in cash so was not given the receipt. He

was able to produce cash and carry invoices for other tobacco and alcohol products,

but these were not the problem goods. Mr Abdul Qadeer was advised that to not get
a receipt was not good business practice and that it was insufficient evidence to just

say he bought they from a cash and carry. He then went on to tell the officers that
everyone sells illegal tobacco. HMRC seized the goods and the officers left the
premises at approximalely 22:15. Shortly after they left, the officers watched a white
Eastern European man enter the premises clutching a carrier bag under his arm. Mr
Abdul Qadeer shook his head and the man left without buying any other goods. He

then entered a premises, a couple of doors down. The officers followed him, and the
HMRC officer stopped him, and took the carrier bag from him. Thig contained
approximately 80 packets of 20 non-duty paid cigarettes. The officer spoke with the
male, and seized the illegal tobacco. See Appendix 3a-ifor photos taken whilst in
the premises and Appendix 4a-b for HMRC papennrork

13.0S.16 - 20:30 - 20:50 - Out of Hours Licensing Enforcement Officers (EVG/CPX)

visited the premises to check the outstanding licence conditions. The following I
conditions were being breached: Condition 7 - No drinking area zone sign was on

Qisplay. Condition 16 - Till unable to prompt for lD. A full variation application would
be required if they want to remove this condition. Condition 20/21 No refusals since
January 2016 - reminded to use every time a sale is rêfused. Condition 22123124 -

4 F L¡C 1A

Page 18



No training carried out since 2014. Mr Eshsan Mahmood (staff) present but not in
the book. Condition 10 (7) Time on CCTV needs to be corrected (minus 50 mins).
An inspectíon report was completed, signed and issued to the Premises Licence
Holder. See Appendix 5. The officers gave the Premises Licence Holder a minor
variation application with covering letter and a list of conditions and explained that
following the recent non-duty paid seizure he was being given the opportunity to
submit a minor variation to strengthen his licence conditions voluntarily rather than
face a licence review. See Appendix 6a-b. The deadline for submitting the minor
variation was set as 27th May 2106. The Officers asked the Premises Licence Holder
to sign a transfer of property disclaimer so that they could destroy the goods seized
but he would not sign it then and there so was issued a copy of it to read and return.
See Appendix 7. To date this has not been received.

The deadline for submitting the minor variation past and an officer phoned the
Premises Licence Holder and left them a voicemail advising that as nq minor
variation had been submitted a review application would be submitted. No reply was
received.

To date no minor variation application has been submitted leaving the Licensing
Authority with no choice but to review the licence requesting that the conditions be

added/amended. The Suggested amended / additional conditions are set out below:

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

3. There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children.

4., A CCTV system shall be installed, operated and maintained at the premises

REMOVE - see condition 10.

5. A panic-alarm system shall be .installed, operated and maintained at the
premises.

REMOVE - see condition 12

6. Signs shall be displayed at the exit to the premises reminding customers to
leave quietly and respect the neighbours.

AMEND TO - Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all public

exits from the premises requesting customers respect the needs of local residents
and leave the premises and area quietly. These notices shall be positioned at eye
level and in a location where they can be read by those leaving the premises.

7. Signs shall be displayed at the exit to the premises stating 'You are entering a
drinking control area and no alcoholic drinks are to be opened on the streets
within this area.'

8. The 'Think 21' proof-of-age scheme shall be operated at the premises.

AMEND TO - The premises shall operate the LocalAuthority or similar proof of age
scheme and display the relevant material,

No children under the age of 14 years shall be admitted to the premises

between 21:OO and 07:00 unless they are accompanied by an adult.
9.

4 F LIC 1A

Page 19



10.

11

The premises must be fitted with a digital Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)
system, which must conform to the following points: (1) lf the CCTV
equipment is inoperative or not working to the satisfaction of the Police or
Licensing Authority, the premises shall not be used for licensable activities
unless with prior agreement from the Police; (2) Cameras must be sited to
observe the entrance doors both inside and outside, the counter areas and all
alcohol displays; (3) Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots
of the heads and shoulders of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of
identification - not less then 120o/o of screen; (4) Cameras viewing till areas
must capture frames not less then 50% of screen; (5) Cameras ovçrlooking
floor areas should be wide angled to give an overview of the premises. They
must be capable of detection i.e. not less than 1Oo/o of screen; (6) Be capable
of visually confirming the nature of the crime committed; (7) Provide a linked
record of the date, time and place of any image; (8) Provide good quality
images - colour during opening times; (9) Operate under existing light levels
within and outside the premises; (10) Have the recording device located in a
Secure area or locked cabinet; (11) Have a monitor to review images and
recorded picture quality; (12) Record images as near to real time as possible;
(13) Recorded images must be of sufficient quality that persons can be
identified from the recorded pictures as well as the live view; (14) Be regularly
maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention; (15)
Comply with the Data Protection Act (DPA) and any applicable British
Security lndustry Association (BSIA) codes of practice; (16) Have signage
displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in operation; (17) Be
operated by the correct procedures, to ensure an evidence trail is recorded
and can be retrieved for e.vidential purposes; (18) Digital images must be kept
for31 days; (19) Checks should be frequently undertaken to ensure thatthe
equipment performs properly and that all the cameras are operational and a

log kept; (20) The medium on which the images have been recorded should
not be used when it has become apparent that the quality of the images has
deterioratea; Q1) Access to recorded images should be restricted to those
staff that need to have access in order to achieve the purposes of using the
equipmenti e4 All access to the medium on which the images are recorded
should be documented; (23) Police will have access to images at any
reasonable t¡me; (24) The equipment must have a suitable export method,
e.g. CDiDVD writer so that the police can make an evidential copy of the data
they require. This data should be in the native file format, to ensure that no
image quality is lost when making the copy. lf this format is non,standard (i.e.

manufacturer proprietary) then the manufacturer should supply the replay
software to ensure that the video on the CD can be replayed by the police on

a standard computer. Copies must be made available to Police on request;
(25) Disclosure of the recorded images to third parties should only be made in

limited and prescribed circumstances, law enforcement agencies, Prosecution
agencies, relevant legal representatives and people whose images have been
recorded and retained.

lf the premises operate past 01:00 'Raid Control' must be installed: (1) A time
delay'safe is fitted which must be secured to the fabric of the building or
counter area; (2) A separate covert real time camera is fitted above the front
door facing inwards. (Raid Cam); (3) A smoke note system is installed; (4) A
training package is provided and all staff must be fully trained in the Raid
Controls use; (5) Minimise cash in till by use of the time delay safe.

REMOVE - Raid control is no longer available.

6 F LIC 1A

Page 20



12. An alarm system to EU 50131 (or if existing system to 834737) must be
installed at the premises. A panic button facility must be provided at the
counter.

13. A personal licence holder is to be present on the premises and supervise the
sale of alcohol, throughout the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol. This
person should be fluent in English in order to properly conduct the sale of
alcohol and more importantly to refuse the sale if so required.

14. There must be 2 members of staff on duty at all times the premises are open.

15. All alcohol displays must be in full view of the counter area.

16. The till must be capable of prompting staff to ask for lD to ensure there are no
underage sales.

17. The premises must operate the local authority or similar proof of age scherne
and display the relevant material. Only passports, photographic driving
licences and lD with the P.A.S.S. logo must be accepted.

REMOVE - see amended Condition 8.

18. The loading and unloading from vehicles supplying either goods or services to
the front or the rear of the premises shall not take place between the hours of
20.00 and 08.00. This shall include all deliveries.

19 Staff shall actively discourage patrons from congregating in the vicinity of the
premises.

20 A method of documenting refused sales for example a "refusal book or diary"
must be kept at the point of sale, or one at each point of sale where
necessary, or recorded electronically on the till. This must be completed on
each separate occasion that an individual is refuqed a sale of alcohol; where
the individual does not provide the identification or the individual is suspected
to be under age.

AMEND TO - A written record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and

completed when necessary or recorded electronically on the till. This record shall be
made available to Police and/or the Local Authority upon request and shall be kept
for at least one year from the date of the last entry.

21. The owner/licenseeimanager must undertake routine monitoring of the
refusals reoords.

22 All staff who make sales of alcohol must receive regular training (induction
and refresher) this should include: (1) Application of the "Think 21" or
"Challenge 21" proof - of- age scheme or similar; (2) Penalties for selling to
an under age person; (3) Asking for appropriate photographic identification;
(a) The refusals process; (5)Any other information as deemed appropriate.

AMEND TO - All staff who make sales of alcohol shall receive induction and
refresher training (at least every three months) relating to the sale of alcohol, and the
times and conditions of the prernises licence

23. Training must be documented and records kept for at least 2 years.

7 F LIC 1A

Page 21



24.

AMEND TO - All training relating to the sale of alcohol and times and conditions of
the licence shall be documented and records kept at the premises. These records
shall be made available to the Police and/or Local Authority upon request and shall
be kept for at least one year.

Any training provided must be provided and verified by a competent person
for example the designated premises supervisor.

Add the following conditions:

Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor shall
purchase alcohol and / or tobacco stock.

a

a

o

Alcohol and tobacco stock shall only be purchased from registered wholesalers.

The premises licence holder and any other persons responsible for the purchase
of stock shall not purchase any goods from door-to-door sellers.

The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bo'ught are
kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been brought into the
UK through legal channels. Receipts shall show the following details: (1)
Seller's name and address; (2) Seller's company details, if applicable; (3) Seller's
VAT details, if applicable. Copies of these documents shall be retained for no
less than 12 months and shali be made available to police or authorised officers
of the council on request within five working days of the request. The most
recent three months'worth of receipts shall be kept on the premises and made
available to the police or authorised officers of the council on request.

All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be stored in a
container clearly marked 'Tobacco Stock'. This container shall be kept within the
store room or behind the sales counter.

Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind the sales
counter in order to make a sale.

*LBE currently promote the "Think 25" policy

I also recommend the licence be suspended for a maximum of 3 months until
compliance with all licence conditions has been demonstrated.

Additional lnformation:

DCMS Guidance (11.27) states that there are certain criminal activities that may
arise in connection with licensed premises, which the Secretary of State considers
should be treated particularly seriously. The list includes the sale of smuggled
tobacco and alcohol (i.e. non duty paid products).

DCMS guidance (11.28) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsible
authorities will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and
crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime
prevention objective is being undermined through the premises being used to further
crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence - even in the first instance -
should be seriously considered.

a

a

o

ta F t-¡c 1A

Page 22



Gonclusion:

Enfield Licensing Authority is seeking a review of the premises licence on the
grounds that the premises have been found to be selling non-duty paid cigarettes /
tobacco and alcohol and breaching licence conditions. The Premises Licence Holder
has been given the opportunity to submit a minor variation and avoid the need for a
review but has no such application has been submitted.

The Licensing Authority reserve the right to add any additional information to
support this review application.

Please tick yes

Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before Yesfl

lf yes please state the date of that application
Da Month Year

Please tick yes
. I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible n

authorities and the premises licence holder or club holding the club
prem ises certificate, as appropriate

. i understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements n
my application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2OO3

TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION

9

Suspension of Licence:

Revocation of L¡cence:

Y

N

Recomm ended period of suspension (max 3 months):

The Secretary of State believes that the sale of smuggled alcohol should be treated
particularly seriously and that where licence reviews are submitted and the licensing
authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined
revocation of the licence, even in the first instance should be seriously considered.

The Licensing Authority tries and work with businesses, advising thern and assisting
them with achieving compliance with their licence conditions and all relevant
legislation. As there is nò previous history of non-duty paid goods being found at this
premises the Licensing Authority is not seeking revocation on this occasion. The fact
that the Premises Licence Holder has not taken any action in an attempt to remedy
the problems and have seemingly made no attempt to achieve compliance with the
licence conditions is a real concern. Should further non-duty paid goods be found in
future at this premises the Li,censing Authority will seek a review to revoke the
premises licence in its entirety.

tf you have made representatio ns re re lating to these premises please state
what they were and when you made them

F LIC 1A

Page 23



Part 3 - Signatures (please read guidance note 3)

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent
(See guidance note 4). lf signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what
capacity.

Signature:

Date: 17th June 2016

Gapacity: Licensing Enforcement Officer

Notes for Guidance
1. The gfound(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.
2. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems

which are included in the grounds for review if available.
3. The application form must be signed.
4. An applicant's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf

provided that they have actual authority to do so.
5. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this

application

Gontact name (where not previously g iven) and postal address for
correspondence associated with this application (please read guidance note 5)

Post town Post Gode

Telephone num ber (if any)

lf you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e'mail address your e-
mail address (optional)

10 F LIC 1A

Page 24



frV potdu'x I

REF: wr<l 2t SO t e 75 cf

Part B of Premises Licence displayed?
Address & tel no. of PLH & DPS on licence conect?
Conditions of licence checked?

,0..t(....., the fotow¡ng was checked:

LlcN_1
LICENSING ENFORCEMENT INSPECTION REPORT

During an inspection of your premises 
"" 

.t..9 l\,lo/_

q Yes
Yes
Yes

No!
NO [ (lf lnconect, insert new details below)
Non

Premises Name + (-\(

5¿l
Premises Address

Time of Visít: Start:

No. of condition
not ln compliance

Evldence/Adv ¡ce
' I l \ 

-l 
. L t\-^¡a

C,+
tn

,t
C(
c,1
c13 Pe.f C9 qA Jp3

C
c \6

I

itLs rr C ts- cìÊ t cf!,\
c.L9 l,

C,l oil.a

Ê ,a-ü
tr!.'r..!!.r¡rrr.¡tr

breaches may constltute a crimlnal offence and result ln legal

oJìru ì^ .t1¡\c- er QA
CcItJsìr! ft^h

Qa-r
notice. Fe¡lufo to rectify the

being brought against you.

E

l¿

can .gpv

C/td.S¿rn:q

bo o-rcf-ra cLìU

LICENSING ENFORCEMENT oF DpTrcE

6/ù onvof

eLÜ a Gt P*çn
Print Name Print

Ä,t r 7 / rV\QfnNû

ú^@a\tlq.
EmailiT

M F T ll rtPo r. tll\ N
F'()LfCE

a,[ccw;

so.jq:

nuu,9

Page 25



The Owner/Designated Premises
Supervisor
Food and Wine Express
345 Bowes Road
LONDON
N11 1AA

Please reply to:

Tel:

Fax:

Minicom:

Emall:

My Ref:

Your Ref:

Date:

ft? PQ^ù-x L
Sheila Lahey
Environment Department
PO Box 57, Civic Centre
Silver Street, Enfield, Middx. EN1 3XH
020 8379 8505
020 8379 8506
020 8379 4419
trading.standards@enfield.gov, uk
wr</216001761

6th April 2016

Phone:0208379 1000

Website: www.enfi el d.gcrv.ul<

FOR THE ATTENTION OF THE OWNER AND DESIGNATED PREMISES

SUPERVISOR

Re: Sale of intoxicating liquor to persons under 18

premises: Food and wine Express,345 Bowes Road, LONDON, Nll IAA

t am w¡ting to you as the owner and designated premises supervisor for the above

premises tõ adv¡se you that Trading Standards recently received information alleging

ihat underage sales of alcohol háve taken place from your premises.,

This letter contains a brief summary of the law relating to the sale of alcohol to

anyone under the age of 18 and some recommendations of good practice, which

máy help prevent illegal sales being made from your business.

The Law

It is a criminal offence to sell alcohol to a person under the age of eighteen,

even if they look older.

A sale may result irt a number of people in the busines-s committing. an

offence. The seller, a 'personal licence holder', the 'premises licence holder',

and the owner of the business may all face prosecution.

The maximum penalty for breaching the law is a 85000 fine per offence.

It is worth noting that if you are not the actual seller, and you have done all

you reasonably can to prevent the sale of alcohol to children from your

þremises, you may be able to raise 'a defence' to any action and avoid a

criminal conviction.

Furthermore, the Act confers additional powers on the Council where
problems are identified at a premises, where they relate to the licensing

bbjectives (namely: crime & disorder; public nuisance; public safety; and the

protection of children from harm)'

o

a

a

a

a

lan Davis

Director - Environment
Enfield Council

Civic Centre, Silver Street

Enfield ENI 3XY

? r¡..^,,À-^J.tl-.J--¡,-^-.¡-.--.L^.¡-.-^...-,--,1.,-*..-,ti-.-¡--^-r..-.'t.---.-,\'l^ôlÌ^r^ñ^----'ll_-Ê^l¡'Á'__ìl:'^''c'l'l_-'"'l'

Page 26



a ln essence this may result in the review of your licence by a Responsibility

Authority for example Trading Standards, Environmental Health or the Police

FUrthermore, under the Act, residents themselves may also seek to review

the licence.

tn considering any review application, the Council's Licensing Sub-Committee

may choose to:
. revoke the licence;
. suspend the licence for up to three moriths;'

I remove the DPS from the licence;
I exclude a licensable activity from the licence; and / or
¡ modify the conditions of the licence.

Good Practice

you may wish to consider the following steps to help avoid selling age-restricted
products to persons u¡derage: '

o Ensurê you have in place a suitable proof of age scheme for example "Think

21',.

r Display posters showing age limits in the sales area, which contain a

statemient regardíng the refusal of such sales. This ma¡¿ deter potehtial

purcha.sers and act as a reminder to staff. You may also wish to display

hotices in staff areas, perhaps wilh riiramings about the potential

consequences of selling alcohol to children-

o Ensure new and existing staff are properly trained and that afl staff are

regularly reminded abOut the law. Keep records of any training, and when

that training.was carried out. .

. Ensure you have a rnethod of documenting refused sales fOr example a

"iêfusal book or diary.' This should be kept at the point pf sale, or'recorded
eleotronically on thá till. This should be completed on. each separate

occasion thãt an individual is refused a sale of alcohol. . ' 
'

o lt is also good practice for the person monitoring the use of the refusals book

to sign ãnd date when their checks have been made. This will help to
dèmonstrate tliat it is being monitored and used properly.

. Ensure your staff arq cleai about how to deal wíth attempted purchases by

underage persons and are able to refuse sales when nêcessary. Have a

clear põlicy such as ask¡ng for photo identification. if there is any doubt about

the persoñ's age. You míght want to consider taking a 'no lD, no sale'

approach to age-restricted products,

.' Acceptable proof of age cards contain the PASS (Proof of Ag9 Standards

Scheme) hologram, which provides a guaranteç that the card is authentic.

Schemes include Citizen Card, Validate UK and the Portman Card.

Page 27



a

Passports and Photocard Driving licences are also acceptable means for
proof of age.

lf you possess an EPoS (Electronic Point of Sale) system, it may be possible

to remind staff via a prompt.

ln order to support premises in meeting the conditions of their licence, the
Licensing Authority has produced material such as training guidance, leave
quietly signs, refusals book, which can be found on the Enfield website by
following this link:
htto:liu¡¡vw.enfield.oov.uk/downloadsldownload/23lGlcomoliance documents

Please print the material relevant to the conditions and use in accordance
with your licence.

Enforcement

Trading Standards regularly ask youngsters to attempt to buy age restricted
prodUcts from businesses to check that they are abiding by the law. Please
be advised that the volunteer may lie about their age. Offenders could face
fines and the premises licence could be recommended for a review by the
licensing committee.

Further advice

lf you require more information or want advice on how to comply with the law on
underage sales please contact trading standards by phone on 020 8379 8505.
Alternatively you can send an email to tradino"standards(@enfield,oov.uk .

This letter has been composed by Enfield Trading Standards for traders; lt is
not an authoritative document on the law and is only intended for guldance.
For further advice, contact Trading Standards or refer directly to the
legislation.

Yours faithfully

Sheila Lahey
Fair Trading Officer

a

Page 28



i ) t v-r1r>.JJU

.\7 l
!

J

Page 29



.i

Page 30



Page 31



--

Page 32



Page 33



I

Page 34



/

Ð

.t

I
Y

It

!

I
!

?t:

'Þ'

;!

Iå

çÕ+

,+¡

t

t:.'{
'l

r!,,1

3
à

t¡

I

T

lt,

i¡l-"'

I

Í

If'

i

rF

'/

!¿

lÀ

I
#'

I

F"r
f

\
lli,,*¿:S.

{#

G

ì

F-

n#

I

I
n

I

r

!tç

,î^
' ¡(

Yt '-J
ï

J

I

I

f.

',

I

lr

a

ù-.

-_e

-C

G

I

./

tfr
{

a'
-

-a-

<t

a

I

-t'

=,

It
lr
l"

t

I

V
Lî

t
-'t{
'1¿

I
t.'

,l ì

,<'2
(
.y"
q-
c-i-
G

t

!t

friff
Íi

P
age 35



iìç-ça:x!'¡ -t h

*

Page 36



Êp¡x,drt¡\ 3 i

*

Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



REF:w|(ZlSO E 818!F
ftgpvrl;x 6

LtcN_1
LICENSING ENFORCEMENT INSPECTION REPORT

'-
During an inspection of your premises on ,lca,.

Part B of Premises Licence displayed?
Address & tel no. of PLH & OPS on licence correct?
Conditions of licence checked?

E@
ìrrr/o¡klng togelher lor o ¡altr l-ndon

20..6.,,,., the following was checked:r'lq5
Non
NO ! (lf incorrect, insert new details below)

Non

Yes
Yes
Yes

{

A-

t

. P[s-q sa-

You are required to have the abovo matters attendèd to wlthin ..........days of this notlce. Failure to rectify the above
breaches may const¡tute a criminal offence and result in legal proceedlngs belng brought agalnst you.

cen

Premises Name

rG*.r-r-!S .frif I (Premises Address

Time of Visit:

No. of conditlon
not in comollance

EvidencelAdvice

atl
\.+e/C,7

((6 r,{^çri&,9$,tr" *trp&f?{' JP., 1, t^ HTgf,g
C¿¿¡OJ hcn . c¡t. L-b¡., lnuslt OCicktoso c].r\3 ds<à
1rì{7r ht o l-r¡ t cr-s_Jrx:( (cvúLiÅr.'t1

c.zö/zl rùJ t' qÊarscr'ts rQbcvcfa¿ s\^co Jonucr'.{'fP .

n#,gy ?g ffilÂ 5a :Ì? r.Q tÆ LI-6 C,Ê YX-TA

i.hj tf.crj,^-ì Ao c o.f n Qct..cþt \'\(\L-0- ¿u t t , t¡\i.(þæ ç¡¡,1JMn L\ry\rnrl /strr LÊ ) ñt2stn{ . y\(/t-c,ufzslz*
tA tr: V¡p (cr îocVft7lf+i.tP;^^ o î\n

,

- tl¡¡=ì

RECIPIENT OF NOTICELICENSING ENFORCEMENT

'ä;iïM*Sinature of Officer on visit:

(.8
sig

Pfint Name & Posítion:

Ntr AbcL\ Cqd.Oa/
o¡+l

PLHI

Print Name:

Chû/tcft{p Qrtrrtcn

I\r\
Ema

1
Ic ùdto c.od1 r@Q)d,

l/Te

tcrlla

Lcg¡'
at gov.uk/serv

Eflt¿FtP,,-q

Page 40



ENF[EL.ü

np6¡6¡x 6 q
rgt{- l9l8

Mr Abdul Qadeer
4 Fleetwood Road
Dollis Hill
London
NWIO 1NN

lan Davis
Director - Regeneration & Environment
Enfield Council
Civic Centre, Silver Street
Enfield ENe3XY

'lease reply to: Charlotte Palmer
Licensing Enforcement
B Block North, Civic Centre,
SILVER Street, Enfield, EN1 3XA

Charlotte. palmer@enfield. gov. u k

o20 8379 4419
LN/200700399

Website: www.enfield,gf¡v.uk

E-mail

Textphone
My Ref

Your Ref
Date 13th May 2016

Dear Mr Qadeer

The Tobacco (Manufacture, Presentation and sale) (safety) Regulations 2002

Consumer Protection Act {987
Licensing Act 2003

Food and Wine Express, 349 Bowes Road, London, Nll lAA' LN/200700399

I write to you as the current premises licence holder and designated prémises supervisor of

the above named business.

On Friday 22d April2016 your premises was searched for counterfeit and non-duty paid

alcohol and tobacco. õn" rrunoråo and seven packets of non duty paid hand rolling tobacco

;;ãi'ñ¡'rttõùútfl"r oiJoo¡." with counterfeit back lables were found in the premsies.

The tobacco and cigarette packets hqd foreign labelling.. They were not subjecl to UK duty

"no 
o¡ã not bear thiJuK öurv pAlD' labelling. Also the-required warning label such as:

smoking harms you and others around you.wag in.a..foreig1-l-ans.u99e. The Tobacco

irr¡ãÀrtã.ture, präsãnt"tion ãno Sale) (Safety) Regulations 2002 which require English

ìråiÀ¡.gi weie thus contravened, amounting to a Criminal .offence under the Consumer

Protection Act 1987.

The Department for Culture, Media and Sport (DCMS) Guidance (11.27.) states that there a¡e

certain criminal activ-ities inai r"v arise in ionnection with lioensed premises, which the

Secretary of state oonsiders should be treated particularly seriously. The list inc[¡des the sale

or storage of smuggled iobacco and alcohol'

=

-El
ä,Ëtr
5*g&EOUAUNT

FRAMEWORK
FOR TOCAL
GOVERNMENT
Éxçf U tNt

OFor help with this document, please contact the above officer who will be able to assist in line with our accessible information policy

Page 41



DCMS gu¡dance (11.28) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsible authorities will

use the review proceduieõ effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where reviews aris,e

ànd the licensing áùthority determines that the crime prevention objective is being

undermined throujh the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation

of the licence , evèn in the first instance - should be serÍously considered.

Consequently, the Licensing Authority is considering reviewing the premises licence. The

Licensing Aúthority believeã that additional conditions need to be added to the'premises

licence to strengthen the licensing objectives.

As an alternative to having your licence reviewed, the Licensing Authority are prepared to

off"r you the, opportunity tó apply for a minor variation to volunlarily add conditions to the

premiães licencb'and / oi to improve some of the current condition's.

Enclosed is a documbnt showing suggested amendments to the conditions.

lf you agree to apply for the minor variation please do So by Friday 27h May 2016. A minor

variation application form is enclosed.

lf you do not agree to submit the minor variation, it will leave the Llcensing AL¡thorlty'with no

änäi"" Out to pürru" á review of the premises licençe. You will then run the rist<'of having the

lióensing committee irnpóse stricter restrictions on the premises.licence and poss[bly even

iuspenõ¡on of revocation of the licence.

please consider this ldtter to be a warning as to your futqre confluct. S-hould further

"¡r¡1,r. 
offences be committed at the prómises, the LicensingzAúthority shall take

i.r"A¡"t" ".t¡on 
in ordei to'havê the premises licence permanently revoked, as

recom*"nded þY the Secretary of State gqidance and or to prosecute,you.

yóu must buy tobacco, alcohol and any other branded pr.oduct frQm a reputable ,åttet. These '

proOucià rrét U" evidenced by receipts which must be available for inspection upon request.

lf you have any queries about the enclosed list of conditions or are unáble to apply for a minor

uariation withiñ the time frame gíven please contact mè via email:

chaflotte. öatmer(ðenf ie ld.osv. uk

Yours sihcerelY

Charlotte Palmer
Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer

cc: Mr Abdul Qadeer, Food and Wine Express, 349 Bowes Road; London, N11 1AA

Page 42



h?Kldr'x 6 b .

Food and Wine Express, 349 Bowes Road, London, Nll lAA

Amended / additional conditions to be added to premises licence LN/200700399

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operatiñg schedule

3. Thére shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters

ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to cqncern in respect of

children.

4. ' A CCTV system shall be installed, operated and maintained at the premises.

REMOVE - see condition 10.

S. A panic-alärm system shall be installed, operated and maintained at the

premises.

REMOVE - see condition 12

6. Signs shal! be displayed at the exit to the premises reminding customers to

leãve quietly and respect the neighbours.

AMEND TO - prominenÇ clear and.legible notices shall be displayed at all public

êx¡is fiom the premises requesting customer,s respect the.needs qf lÒcal residents

and leavê the þremises änd area qqietly, These notices shall be'positloned at eye

iËuèl ãnO ¡n a lòcatìon where they cáà be read by those leaving the premises.

Signs Shall be'"displayed at the exit to'the premises stating 'You âre qntering a

ãrinf¡ng control aieaand no alcoholic drinks are,to be opened on the streets

ritnin tiis area.'

8. ,The 'Think 21' proof-of-age scheme shall be operated at the pr'ernises'

AMEND TO - The premises shall operate the Local Authority or similar proÓf of age

scheme and display the relevant material. 
ì

g. No children under the age ol 14 years Shall be admitted to the premises

between 21:OO and 07:00 unless they are accompanied by ari adult'

10. Thê premises must be fitted with a digital Closed Circuit Television (C_CTV)

,yrt"m, wniðn rnist,confórm to the following poftg: (1)-!.1 the CCTV

equipment is inoperative or not working to lhe satisfaction of the Police or

f-iòeirsing Authority, the premises shall.not be used for licensable activities

unf.æ r,t¡tn þrior ágreement frorn the Police; (2) Cameras rnyst be sited to

observe the entranõe doors both inside and outçide, the countér areas and all

alcohol displays; (3) Cameraç'on the entrances must capture full frame shots

of the heads ánO iÉuuUers of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of

identification - not less then 12Oo/o of screen; (4) Cameras viewing till areas

must captu.re frames net'less then 50% of screen; (5) Cameras overlooking

floor areas'should be wide.angled to give an overview of the premises. They

must be capable of detection i.e. not lèss than 10o/o oÍ screen; (6) Be capable

of visually confirming the nature of the crime committed; (7) Provide a linked

7

Page 43



record of the date, time and place of any image; (8) Províde good quality

images - colour during opening times; (9) Operate under existing light levels

within and outside the premises; (10) Have the recording device located in a
secure area or locked cabinet; (11) Have a monitor to review images and

recorded picture quality; (12) Record images as near to real time as possible;

(13) Recorded images must be of sufficient quality lhat PgFqns can be

identified from the recorded pictures as well as the live view; (14) Be regularly

maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention; (15)

Comply with the Data Protection Act (DPA) and any applicable British
. Securi[y lndustry Association (BSIA) codes of practice; (16) Have 9ig¡age

displayäd in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in operation; (17) Be
opéraieO by the correct prqcedures, to ensure an evidence trail is recorded

and can bsretrieved for eviðential purposes; (18) Digital images must be kept

for 31 days; (19) Checks should be frequently undertaken to ensure that the

equipment performs properly and that all the cameras are operational and a
bö úept; (20) The medium on which the images have been recorded should

not be used when it has become apparent that the quality of the images has

deteriorated; (21) Access to recorded images should be restricted to those

staff that need to have access in order to achieve the purposes of usíng the

equipment; (22) AJI access to the medium on which the images are recorded

slrould be documented; (23) Police will have access to images at any

reasonable t¡me; (24) The equipment must have a suitable export- method,

e.g. CD/DVD writer so that the police can make an evidential copy of the data

they require. This data should be in the native file format, to ensure that no

imáge quality is lost when making the copy. lf this format is non-standard (i'e.

manufacturer proprietary) then the manufacturer should supply the replay

software to ensure that the video on the CD can be replayed by the police on

a standard computer. Copies must be made available to Police on request;
(25) Disclosure of the recorded images to third parties should onlyte made in

timiied and prescribed circumstances, law enforcement agencies, Prosecution

agencies, relevant legal representatives and people whose images have been

recorded and retained.

11. lf the premises operate past 01:00 'Raid Control' must be installed: (1) A time
delay safe is fitted which must be secured to the fabric of the building or
counter area; (2) A separate covert real time camera is fitted above the front

door facing inwards. (Raid Cam); (3) A smoke note system is installed; (4) A

training pãckage is provided and all staff must be fully trained in the Raid

Controls.use; çS¡ tvtinimise cash in till by use of the time delay safe.

REMOVE - Raid control is no tonger available.

12. An alarm system to EU 50131 (or if existing system to 854737) must be

installed at the premises. A panic button facility must be provided at the

counter.

13. A personal licence holder is to be present on thepremises and supervise the

saie of alcohol, throughout the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol' This
person should be fluent in English in order to properly conduct the sale of

alcohol and more importantly to refuse the sale if so required.

14.

15.

There must be 2 members of staff on duty at all times the premises are open.

All alcohol displays must be in fullview of the counter area.

Page 44



16. The till must be capable of prompting staff to ask for lD to ensure there are no

underage sales.

17. The premises must operate the local authority or similar proof of age scheme

and display the relevant material. Only passports, photographic driving

licences anã lo witn the P'A'S'S. logo must be accepted

REMOVE - see amended Gondition 8.

1g. The loading and unloading from vehicles supplying either goods or services to

the front oitfre rear of the premises shall not take place between the hours of

20.00 and 08.00. This shall include alldeliveries'

1g. Staff shall actively discourage patrons from congregating in the vicinity of the

premises.

20. A method of documenting refused sales for example a "refusal'book or diary"

must be kept at the póint of sale' or one at each point of sale where

necessary, or recorded electronically ón the till- Thìs must be completed on

each sep-aþte occasion that an individual is refused a sale of alcohol; where

the individual does not provide the identification,or the individual is suspected

to be under age.

AMEND TO - A written record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and

completed when necessary or recorded electronically on the till. This record shall be

madä available to Police and/or the Local Authority upon request and shall be kept

for at least one year from the date of the last entry.

21. The owner/licensee/manager must undertake routine monitoring of the

refusals records.

22. All staff who make sales of alcohol must receive regular training (induction

and refresher) this should include: (1) Application of the "Think 21" or
' "Challenge 21î proof - of- age scheme or similar; (2) Penalties for selling to

an undei age person; (3) Asking for appropriate photographic identification;

(a)The refuéaË process; (5) Any other information as deemed appropriate.

AMEND TO - All staff who make sales of alcohol shall receive induction and

i"trofr"r training (at least every thiee months) relating to the sale of alcohol, and the

times and conditions of the premises licence

23. Training must be documented and records kept for at least 2 years.

AMEND TO - All training relating to the sale of alcohol and times and conditions of

the licence shall be docilmented and records kept at the premises. These records

shall be made available to the Police and/or LocalAuthority upon request and shall

be kept for at least one Year.

24. Any training provided must be provided and verified by a competent person

for éxample the designated premises supervisor'

Page 45



Add the following conditions:

. only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises supervísor shall

puróhase alcohol and / or tobacco stock'

. The premises licence hol.der and any other persons responsible for the purchase

of stòck shall not purchase any goods llrom door-to-door sellers'

r Thê prernises ticence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bought are

¿;ptî;ôiñ"r ¡nã i're u¡. ro6"r as evidence that they have been brought into the

UK through l"g"l ohãnÀets- neceipts shall show the following details: (11 ^ ".

seler,s Rame 
"njäðär"ir; 

(z) seiter's company details, if applicable; (3) seller's

vÃi¿lãt"¡rr, if ;ód¡."îlã. bbóies of these ðocuments shall be retained for no

less than tZ monins and shalibe made available to police or authorised officers

;f td 
"orn"¡l 

on i"quest within five working days of the..request' The most

recent three montñs' wortn of receipts shali be kept on the premises and made

available to tne poi¡ce or authorised officers of the councíl on request'

. Ãlltobacco products which aré not on the tobacco display shall be stored.in a

oontainer clearlyìiãrr.åã-too""co stock'. This container shall be kept within the

store room or behind the sales counter'

. Tobacco produc.ts shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind thê sales

counter in older to make a sale'

*LBE currently promote the "Think 25" policy

Page 46



To: MrAdbul Qadeer
Food and Wine Express
349 Bowes Road
London

N11 1AA

TRANSFER OF PROPERTY DISCLAIMER

Ref: Wlü 200700199

I hereby transfer to the London Borough of Enfield all rights and property in the following
articles whích were in my possession, custody or control

At Food and Wine Express,34g Bowes Road, London, Nll IAA

On: 2?dApril2016

I am authorised to waive all rights from this date, this date being the date of seizure by an
officer of this service, I furthei indemnifi the London Borough õt gnfielo against .ny ónir ot
encumbrance present or future in relation to these goods,

(signed). ,.

(print name), . .

for and on behalf of [lnsert name of business]

(witnæsed by). .....þate)

(print name)...,,,...,

F H07t17

A(trø"'rJ

ENFIELD
Council

Envlromcnbl Health & Reguldon
PO Box 57, Civic Cenke
Silver Street .

Enfleld, Middlesex EN1 3XD

Tel: 0208 379 1000

Full details of the goods being signed over for disposal are detailed ín the attached Schedule

Page 47



F H07117

To: Mr Adbul Qadeer
Food and Wine Express

349 Bowes Road

London
N11 1AA

Envlromental Health & Regulation
P0 Box 57, Civic Centre

Silver Street

Enfield, Middlesex ENI 3XD

Tel: 0208 379 1000

ENFIELD
Council

TRANSFER OF PROPERTY D¡SCLAIMER - Schedule of Goods

Ref: WK/ 200700399

Human Rights Act 1998

Under Article I of the First Protocol of the European Convention on Human Rights every legal
or natuial penon is entiUed to peaceful enjoyment of his possessions. No one shall be

deprived of his possessions except in the public interest and subject to the conditions provided

for by law and the general principles of lnternational Law, ln waiving all rights in the articles
listed above I recognise that I have no rights in the intellectual property in any copyright and/or
registered trade marks contained on or in those items and that the items would be liable to
forfeited by the courts if an application was so made.

Quantity* Description

12 70cl Glens Vodka
22 70cl Smirnoff Vodka
30 50q oackets of Golden Viroinia Hand Rollino Tobacco
77 50q.oackets of Amber Leaf Hand Rollino Tobaoco

Page 48



ENFIELD
Council

rvrvw.enlield.govuk

LICENSING AUTHORITY REPRESENTATION

ADDITIONAL IN FORMATION

Name and address of premises: Food and Wine Express
349 Bowes Road
London
N11 1AA

Type of Application: Review of Premises Licence

Detailed below is information not previously included in the review application
submitted on l7106/16:

Friday 17106116 - 22:40 - 23:15 - Out of Hours Licensing Enforcement Officers (CPX,
EVG) visited the premises to hand deliver the review application. Premises Licence
Holder and another male were there on arrival. The officers explained that they were
there to deliver a licence review application as no minor variation had been submitted.
The Premides Licence Holder claimed that he had tried to call to the officer as he did
not understand the papenruork but there was no answer. The officer advised that they
had not received any voicemails from him. The Premises Licence Holder asked if he
could submit the minor variation now and officer advised that the review had now been
submitted. He called his wife and spoke to her in another language. He advised that
she would come down to speak to the officers. While the officers waiting they checked
the outstanding licence conditions. Condition' 16 - No till prompt. Advised that they
could apply to remove this condition from the licence via a full variation application but
not a minor variation. Condition 20 - refusals book - no entries since last check on
13105116. A group of 4 girls who looked underage entered and hovered around behind
the officers and eventually left without attempting to purchase anything. Condition
22123124 - Mr Rasheed Awan (staff) was working during the visit but according to the
training book no training had been carried out since 2014 - Mr Awan confirmed this -
condition says regular training. The wording of this condition is being updated as part
of the review. This is the third inspection and the same conditions were still not in

compliance. The officers gave 7 days to comply with conditions. 23:00 - Mrs Qadeer
arrived at the premises. She br,ought the minor variation letter with her and stated she
did not understand the letter and had tried to phone the officer to discuss it. The
officers explained the review process to her and that the blue notice must be displayed
for 28 days. Explained how to submit a variation if they want to remove any other
conditions. To date no such application has been received.

Duly Authorised: Charlotte Palmer, Licensing Enforcement Officer

Contact: charlotte. palmer@enfield.qov. uk

Signed Date:2610712016

Page 49



RESTRICTED (whcn complctc)

ñnnex +
MC lt

WITNESS STATEMENT
cJ Acr 1967, s.9; MC Acr 1980, ss.5A(3)(a) and 5B; Criminal Procedure Rules 2005, Rule 27.1

Statement of Martyn Fisher PC 357YE

(if ovel I8 insert'over l8'¡ Occupation: Police ConstableAge ifunder l8 Over l8

This statement (consisting of: 2 pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I make it
knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated anything in it which I
know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

r,
signature: *?ò, -- (-3"iÉ Date: 24thhne20l6

I am Police Constable Martyn Fisher and have worked for the Metropolitan Police service for over 27 years. For

the last six years I have been in post as Licensing Offioer for Enfield Borough Police, dealing with all licensed

premises across the borough of Enfreld. My role involves proactive patrols of these premises along with tasking

other officers to conduct licensing visits, offering both help and reassurance to patrons and management as well

as ensuring that the premises fully uphold the licensing objectives.

. This is a supporting statement regarding a review of a premises licence for a venue known as tr'ood & Wine

Express,349 Bowes Road, New Southgate' Nll 1AA.

Enfield Licensing Authority is seeking a review of the premises licence on the grounds thât the premises has been

found to be selling non-duty paid alcohol and tobacco and breaching licence conditions.

On22nd April 2016 LBE licensing enforcement officers along with HMRC officers attended Food & Wine

Express and seized a quantity of non-duty paid tobacco and alcohol. The licensee, Mr Abdul Qadeer, was given

an oppofunity to submit a minor variation to add additional conditions to the premises licence in order to prevent

further offences of this nature. To date, no such application has been submitted by Mr Qadeer.

DCMS Guidance (11.27) states that there are certain criminal activities that may arise in corurection with licensed

premises, which the Secretary of State considers should be treated particularly seriously. The list includes the sale

of smuggled tobacco and alcohol (i.e. non duty paid products).

DCMS guidance (11.28) goes on to say that it is envisaged that responsible authorities will use the review

procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority

?.j
2006/07(t): MC Il(T.

witnessed by:

RESTRICTED (when complcte)

Signature:

Page 50



RBSTRICTBD (rvhen completcd)
Page 2 of2

Continuation of Statement of Martyn Fisher PC 357YE

determines that the crime prevention objective is being underminecl through the premises being used to further

crimes, it is expected that revocation of the licence - even in the first instance - should be seriously considered.

The pre-mises licence was also inspected on l Sth March 2016 and 13rr'May 2016 where a number of conditions

rvere found to be in non-compliance, lnspection reports rvere Ieft on both occasions and advice given on how to

rectiff the outstanding matters. Despite this advice, further breaches were identified.

Despite being given every opportunity by LBE licensing officers to remedy the outstanding licence conditions

and mitigate further HMRC offences by way of submitting a minor variation, Mr Qadeer has chosen to do

nothing. This shows that Mr Qadeer is unwilling or unable to uphold the licensing objectives and if a suspension

of the licence is granted forthree months, he should use this time wisely to acquaint himself with the premises

licence and conditions thereon so that in future he will be able to comply with his duties as both the premises

licence holder and designated premises supervisor.

Police fully support this review application by LBE licensing enforcement and agree that the suspension gf the

premises licence for a period of 3 months and the addition/amendment of conditions as listed ín LBE licensing

representations be granted to uphold the licensing objectives, particularþ with regards to the prevention of crime

and disorder.

\-ñ'r

Signature

2003( r )

S(ßÇT€ Signature witnessed by:

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 5

Food and Wine Express Proposed Gonditions:

Annex 1 - Mandatory Conditions

The Mandatory Conditions are attached and form part of the Operating Schedule of
your licence/certificate. You must ensure that the operation of the licensed premises

complies with the attached Mandatory Conditions as well as the Conditions in Annex

2 and Annex 3 (if applicable). Failure to do this can lead to prosecution or review of

the licence.

Annex 2 - Gonditions consistent with the Operating Schedule

1. There shall be no adult entertainment or services, activities or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children.

Signs shall be displayed at the exit to the premises stating 'You are entering a

drinking control area and no alcoholic drinks are to be opened on the streets
within this area.'

3. No children under the age of 14 years shall be admitted to the premises

between 21:OO and 07:00 unless they are accompanied by an adult.

4. The premises must be fitted with a digital Closed Circuit Television (CCTV)

system, which must conform to the following points: (1) lf the CCTV
equipment is inoperative or not working to the satisfaction of the Police or
Licensing Authority, the premises shall not be used for licensable activities
unless with prior agreement from the Police; (2) Cameras must be sited to
observe the entrance doors both inside and outside, the'counter areas and all

alcohol displays; (3) Cameras on the entrances must capture fullframe shots
of the heads and shoulders of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of
identification - not less then 120% of screen; (4) Cameras viewing till areas
must capture frames not less then 50% of screen; (5) Cameras overlooking
floor areas should be wide angled to give an overview of the premises. They
must be capable of detection i.e. not less than l Oo/o of screen; (6) Be capable
of visually confirming the nature of the crime committed; (7) Provide a linked

record of the date, time and place of any image; (8) Provide good quality

images - colour during opening times; (9) Operate under existing light levels
within and outside the premises; (10) Have the recording device located in a

secure area or locked cabinet; (11) l-1ave a monitor to review images and
recorded picture quality; (12) Record images as nearto real time as possible;
(13) Recorded images must be of sufficient quality that persons can be

identified from the recorded pictures as well as the live view; (14) Be regularly
maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention; (15)

2

Page 53



Comply with the Data Protection Act (DPA) and any applicable British Security
lndustry Association (BSIA) codes of practice; (16) Have signage displayed in
the customer area to advise that CCTV is in operation; (17) Be operated by
the correct procedures, to ensure an evidence trail is recorded and can be
retrievbd for evidential purposes; (18) Digital images must be kept for 31

days; (19) Checks should be frequently undertaken to ensure that the
equípment performs properly and that all the cameras are operational and a
log kept; (20) The medium on which the images have been recorded should
not be used when it has become apparent that the quality of the images has
deteríorated; (21) Access to recorded images should be restricted to those
staff that need to have access in order to achieve the purposes of using the
equipment; (22) All access to the medium on which the images are recorded
should be documented; (23) Police will have access to images at any
reasonable time; (24)The equipment must have a suitable export method,
e.g. CD/DVD writer so that the police can make an evidential copy of the data
they require. This data should be. in the native file format, to ensure that no
image quality is lost when making the copy. lf this format is non-standard (i.e.
manufacturer proprietary) then the manufacturer should supply the replay
software to ensure that the video on the CD can be replayed by the police on
a standard computer. Copies must be made available to Police on request;
(25) Disclosure of the recorded images to third parties should only be made in

limited and prescribed circumstances, law enforcement agencies, Prosecution
agencies, relevant legal representatives and people whose images have been
recorded and. retained.

5. An alarm system to EU 50131 (or if existing system to 854737) must be
installed at the premises. A panic button faqility must be provided at the
counter.

6. A personal licence holder is to be present on the premises and supervise the
sale of alcohol, throughout the permitted hours for the sale of alcohol. This
person should be fluent in English in order to pioperly conduct the sale of
atcohol and more importantly to refuse the sale if so required.

7. There must be 2 members of staff on duty at all times the premises are open.

8. All alcohol displays must be in full view of the counte r area.

9. The till must be capable of prompting staff to ask for lD to ensure there are no
underage sales.

10. The loading and unloading from vehicles supplying either goods or services to
the front or the rear of the premises shall not take place between the hours of
20.00 and 08.00. This shall include all deliveries.

1 1 . Staff shall actively d iscourage patrons from congregating in the vicinity of the
premrses.

12.The owner/licensee/manager must undertake routine monitoring of the
refusals records.

Page 54



13. Any training provided must be provided and verified by a competent person
for example the designated premises supervisor.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority

CONDITIONS PROPOSED BY LICENSING AUTHORITY - NOT AGREED BY
APPLICANT

14. Prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all public exits from
the premises requesting customers respect the needs of local residents and
leave the premises and area quietly. These notices shall be positioned at eye
level and in a location where they can be read by those leaving the premises.

15.The premises shall operate the Local Authority or similar proof of age scheme
and display the relevant material.

16.4 written record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and completed
when necessary or recorded electronically on the till. This record shall be
made avaílable to Police and/or the Local Authority upon request and shall be
kept for at least one year from the date of the last entry.

17.All',staff who make sales of alcohol shall receive induction and refresher
training (at least every three months) relating to the sale of alcohol, and the
times and conditions of the premises licence

18.All training relating to the sale of alcohol and timeq and conditions of the
licence shall be documented and records kept at the premises. These records
shall be made available to the Police and/or Local Authority upon request and
shall be kept for at least onè year.

19. Only the Premises Licence Holder or Designated Premises Supervisor shall
purchase alcohol and / or tobacco stock.

20.Alcohol and tobacco stock shall only be purchased from registered
wholesalers.

21 .The premises licence holder and any other persons responsible for the
purchase of stock shall not purchase any goods from door-to-door sellers

22.The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bought
are kept together in a file or folder as evidence that they have been brought
into the UK through legal channels. Receipts shall show the following details:
(1) Seller's name and address; (2) Seller's company details, if applícable; (3)
Seller's VAT details, if applicable. Copies of these documents shall be
retained for no less than 12 months and shall be made available to police or
authorised officers of the council on request within five working days of the
request. The most Recent three months' worth of receipts shall be kept on
the premises and made available to the police or authorised officers of the
council on request.

Page 55



23.All tobacco products which are not on the tobacco display shall be stored in a

container clearly marked 'Tobaoco Stock'. This container shall be kept within

the store room- or behind the sales counter.

24.Tobacco products shall only be taken from the tobacco display behind the
sales counter in order to make a sale.

)

Page 56



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.7.2016 

 

- 35 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 6 JULY 2016 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT (Chair) Chris Bond, Vicki Pite and Peter Fallart 
  

OFFICERS: Ellie Green (Principal Licensing Officer), Charlotte Palmer 
(Licensing Enforcement Officer), PC Martyn Fisher 
(Metropolitan Police Licensing Officer), Tope Ojikutu (Legal 
Services Representative), Jane Creer (Democratic Services) 

  
Also Attending: Mr Luigi Patrascu and Mrs Eugenia Patrascu (premises 

licence holders, Taverna) and Mr Patrascu (son and 
spokesperson) 
 

 
40   
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
 
Councillor Bond as Chair welcomed all those present and explained the order 
of the meeting. 
 
 
41   
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
 
NOTED that there were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
42   
TAVERNA, 290 GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 5TW  (REPORT NO. 50)  
 
 
RECEIVED the application made by the Licensing Authority for a review of the 
Premises Licence held by Mr Luigi Patrascu and Mrs Eugenia Patrascu at the 
premises known as and situated at Taverna, 290 Green Lanes, London, N13 
5TW. 
 
NOTED 
 
1. The introductory statement of Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer, 

including: 
a.  This was an application for review of a premises licence, brought by the 
Licensing Authority. 
b.  The licence had been in force since May 2015. 

Page 57 Agenda Item 4



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.7.2016 

 

- 36 - 

c.  Mr Luigi Patrascu and Mrs Eugenia Patrascu were the named premises 
licence holders since 13 May 2015. Mr Luigi Patrascu had also been the 
named designated premises supervisor since 26 April 2016. 
d.  The licence permitted live and recorded music from 12:00 to 23:00 
Monday to Thursday and from 14:00 to 01:00 the following day Friday to 
Sunday. 
e.  On 13 May 2016 the Licensing Authority made the application for the 
review of the licence. The Licensing Authority sought the removal of live 
music from the licence, and to modify conditions. The review application 
related to the prevention of public nuisance and public safety. 
f.  A witness statement had been provided in support of the review 
application by the Metropolitan Police. 
g.  Annex 5 to the report detailed the conditions sought by the Licensing 
Authority. Some of the conditions would depend on what decision the 
Licensing Sub-Committee took today. Conditions 1 to 27 were agreed by 
the premises licence holders. The licence holders were also looking at 
conditions 28 to 32, but she was yet to hear whether they agreed the 
wording. 
h.  It was clarified that the Licensing Authority were seeking removal of live 
music from the licence. If the sub-committee was in agreement with that 
recommendation, then conditions 18 and 19 as amended, and conditions 
24 to 30 and condition 32 were requested to be added to the licence. If the 
sub-committee were minded to retain live music on the licence, the 
authority sought additional conditions 28 to 32, and conditions 18 and 19 
to be amended to apply to live and recorded music. 
i.  In general, licensed premises were automatically entitled to have live 
and recorded music between 08:00 and 23:00, and any related conditions 
would only be enforceable after 23:00. If problems arose and review of a 
licence was sought, conditions could be added to specify live music as a 
licensable activity and that conditions would be enforceable throughout the 
day. 
j.  Mr and Mrs Patrascu were present at this meeting to represent 
themselves, with their son acting as interpreter and spokesperson. 
 

2. The statement of Charlotte Palmer, Licensing Enforcement Officer, 
including: 
a.  The Council had received 14 complaints about this premises in 14 
months, from three different local residents and one neighbouring 
business. 
b.  Live music on 13 March 2016 had been at such a volume level as to be 
deemed a statutory nuisance. This led to an abatement notice being 
served. 
c.  On 26 March 2016 officers advised that the level witnessed was not a 
nuisance, but this did not mean that the prevention of public nuisance 
licensing objective was not being undermined. 
d.  There were residential properties above the parade of shops and in 
streets around the premises. 

Page 58



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.7.2016 

 

- 37 - 

e.  Despite being advised, Mr Patrascu still did not appear to understand 
that the volume level of the music was unnecessarily and uncomfortably 
loud. 
f.  Mr Patrascu had put up sound proofing over the windows, but needed to 
have proper control over the music. The sound proofing made it look like 
the premises were closed. Officers were also concerned that putting 
shutters down could be a public safety issue. 
g.  Licensing Authority officers had no confidence in the licence holders to 
control the music volume sufficiently, and therefore sought removal of live 
music from the licence. 
h.  The plan of the premises which formed part of the licence was still not 
accurate despite the licence holder being advised of it 10 months ago. 
i.  Music had been played after licensed hours. 
j.  A witness statement had been provided by PC Martyn Fisher, 
Metropolitan Police, set out in Appendix 3. Police attended the premises at 
03:30 on Monday 18 April 2016 and were told an event taking place with 
live music was a private party. Facebook posts (included in Appendix 2b) 
had advertised the event with a ticket price of £10. This was therefore not 
a private party and it was a breach of the licence as the venue should have 
been closed at 01:00 hours. 
k.  Breaches of the licence had been discovered on three different 
occasions and the licence holders had been given advice. There was also 
a breach of planning permission. 
l.  If the sub-committee was minded to retain live music on the licence, 
Licensing Authority officers requested modified and additional conditions to 
prevent the premises making use of Section 177A of the Licensing Act 
2003. 
m.  If the sub-committee was not minded to retain live music, officers 
requested a number of additional conditions and licence suspension until 
submission of an accurate plan and compliance with all conditions had 
been demonstrated. 
 

3. Charlotte Palmer responded to questions as follows: 
a.  In response to Councillor Pite’s queries about the future for the 
business, it was clarified that licence holders had 21 days to appeal a 
hearing decision and that they could continue to trade while that appeal 
was heard. 
b.  In response to Councillor Bond’s question about noise limiting devices, 
it was confirmed that anything amplified could be subject to a noise limiter. 
A company should be employed by the licence holder to set the 
appropriate level for the premises. Licensing Authority officers would then 
enforce the relevant conditions. 
c.  In response to Councillor Bond’s queries regarding the effects on the 
shop next door, it was confirmed that their vibration alarm detectors were 
being triggered by the sound of the music meaning the shop owners had to 
attend their premises late at night to reset the alarm. Therefore this 
premises was having a detrimental effect on another business and officers 
wanted to ensure there was no transfer of vibration. 

Page 59



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.7.2016 

 

- 38 - 

d.  Councillor Fallart asked if free standing speakers would be preferable. 
Officers considered that these may reduce vibration through the walls, but 
that they could still be big and cause a problem; and they would still wish 
for installation of a sound limiter to be conditioned. Mr Patrascu advised 
that speakers were currently on stands and not wall mounted and that 
vibrations had been made by renovations works not by the music. 
Charlotte Palmer advised that it was known that the bass and music was 
very loud and conditions sought would be preventative to ensure that 
problems did not occur in future. Officers would like to see acoustic reports 
prepared and tests carried out so that documents could be submitted to 
and approved by the Licensing Authority team to their satisfaction. 
 

4. The statement of PC Martyn Fisher on behalf of the Metropolitan Police 
Service, including: 
a.  Appendix 3 to the report set out his supporting witness statement and 
outlined four calls made to Police from neighbouring properties. 
b.  The fourth complaint, made on 18 April 2016 relating to the supposed 
private party included comments on the CAD that Police were to expect 
the shutters to be down and for the premises to appear closed and that 
they should lift the shutters or enter by the alleyway at the back. 
c.  It was noted that all complaints received related to Sunday night / 
Monday morning, which was unusual. Most people would be expecting to 
go to work on a Monday morning and excess noise into the very early 
hours would affect the quality of life of local residents. 
 

5. The statement of Mr Patrascu on behalf of Mr Luigi Patrascu and Mrs 
Eugenia Patrascu, the premises licence holders, including: 
a.  Noise could only be heard outside when the door was opened: that had 
to happen at some point, but the door would not be open all the time. 
b.  They had spent £2,000 on panels to prevent the noise going out. 
c.  If they got help from the Council that would teach them how to make the 
situation better, and what would be better than the panels. 
 

6. The premises licence holders responded to questions as follows: 
a.  Councillor Bond queried, regardless of noise insulation, why the 
business was operating at 03:45 when the terminal hour permitted by the 
licence was 01:00. It was advised this had only happened twice and the 
mistake was now realised and it would not happen again. 
b.  Councillor Bond asked if the licence holders understood the licence, as 
it appeared that they did not. The concerns were acknowledged, but 
advised that it was understood and the licence would not be breached any 
more. 
c.  Councillor Bond expressed concern that shutters were down, trapping 
people inside, and there would only be one way out in case of a fire. It was 
advised that the curtains were always shut, Mr Patrascu was unsure of the 
reason why, but it was not for the reason to make it seem like the premises 
was closed. The reason for shutters being down was to stop customers 
going outside with alcohol. 

Page 60



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.7.2016 

 

- 39 - 

d.  In response to Councillor Pite’s query, it was confirmed by the licence 
holders that they realised the supposed private events were still subject to 
the terms and conditions of the premises licence. 
e.  In response to Councillor Pite’s further queries whether the licence 
holders accepted the wording of conditions about a noise limiter, it was 
advised that Mr Patrascu was looking into this but did not know where to 
find it. If he got help he would do it straight away. 
f.  Councillor Fallart made reference to shutters being down to stop people 
leaving the premises with alcohol and asked whether door supervisors 
were present when this happened. It was clarified that there had not been 
40 people. When there were more than 40 customers the premises did 
have security staff. It was also advised that the restaurant was not a big 
space and may look like it was full when there were only 25 to 30 
customers. 
g.  Councillor Fallart referred to the licence being conditioned as a 
restaurant and asked whether customers had to be at a table at all times. It 
was confirmed that people sometimes got up to dance, but every customer 
did get a seat at a table and more people would not be permitted to come 
in if there were no seats. 
h.  In response to Councillor Bond’s query why the plan for the restaurant 
was not adhered to, Mr Patrascu advised that he did understand licensing 
law. Charlotte Palmer in explanation added that Mr Patrascu had taken 
part in meetings with officers several times in respect of the plan and each 
time it had not been done correctly: he had been given a list of what 
needed to be shown but they still had not been done. Mr Patrascu 
confirmed that he had drawn the plan three times, but something had been 
missing on each occasion. Charlotte Palmer highlighted that officers still 
awaited the correct version. 
i.  Charlotte Palmer asked about visits she had made to the premises on 
two or three occasions and that Mr Patrascu accepted that she had 
personally asked for the volume of the music to be reduced as it was too 
loud. Mr Patrascu advised that he had tried to do that but someone must 
teach him. He was also aware that sound escaped when the door was 
opened, but the door had to be opened for customers to go out. When 
requested for a yes or no response, Mr Patrascu did acknowledge that 
officers had told him and his colleagues that the volume needed to be 
reduced. 
j.  In response to further queries from Charlotte Palmer, Mr Patrascu 
acknowledged that when officers visited they had to go outside to have a 
conversation as they could not hear themselves speak in the restaurant. 
k.  Charlotte Palmer asked who had control over the volume of the music. 
Mr Patrascu responded that he did and the musicians / band too. 
l.  Charlotte Palmer asked if the musicians / bands were given a briefing or 
if there were sound checks beforehand to ensure that the music was set at 
a level that was reasonable. Mr Patrascu confirmed that sound checks and 
preparations were carried out beforehand. 

Page 61



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.7.2016 

 

- 40 - 

m.  Charlotte Palmer asked what actions were taken by the premises after 
getting the noise abatement notice. Mr Patrascu advised that he attempted 
to take action and he did put the music volume down. 
n.  Charlotte Palmer asked if the premises had any acoustic reports done 
or if contact had been made with anyone in respect of getting them done. 
Mr Patrascu advised that if music stayed on the licence he would take 
actions and get a noise limiter. But Mr Patrascu needed to know details of 
where this could be obtained and where it could be installed. 
o.  Councillor Pite referred to Mr Patrascu asking the Council to trust that 
he would take actions if music stayed on the licence, yet simple 
compliance with the closing time specified on the licence had not been 
managed. Mr Patrascu confirmed that he would respect closing times. He 
had also tried to discuss a smoking area and a second door at the front, 
which would also reduce the noise. To enforce the closing time he would 
take charge and send people out on time. 
 

7. The summary statement of Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer, that 
having heard the representations from all parties it was for the Licensing 
Sub Committee to take such steps as it considered appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. The officers’ report directed 
members to the relevant policies and guidance, and in particular to the 
Live Music Act. 
 

8. The closing statement of Charlotte Palmer, Licensing Enforcement Officer, 
including: 
a.  The Licensing Authority was still requesting that live music be removed 
from the licence. Music at this premises had been so loud that she had 
been unable to hear her own voice in the restaurant and officers had been 
able to feel vibrations through their bodies. The music had also set off 
vibration alarms at another business. The premises licence holders had 
been present at the times of officer visits. 
b.  Carrying out sound checks outside, and turning down the volume 
should be measures that were simple to do. Yet the noise had been so 
loud as to lead to serving a noise abatement notice. 
c.  The Licensing Authority therefore had no confidence in the ability of the 
licence holders to comply with the conditions of the licence. 
 

9. The closing statement of PC Martyn Fisher on behalf of the Metropolitan 
Police Service, including: 
a.  There had been a number of noise complaints in relation to this 
premises, and a noise abatement notice had been issued. 
b.  Reference had been made to acoustic reports and other mitigation, but 
all the licence holders had to do was to ensure the music volume was 
turned down sufficiently so as not to annoy neighbours. 
c.  Therefore the Police supported this review application by the Licensing 
Authority to ensure that local residents had the peace and quiet which they 
rightly deserved. 
 

Page 62



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.7.2016 

 

- 41 - 

10. The closing statement of Mr Patrascu on behalf of Mr Luigi Patrascu and 
Mrs Eugenia Patrascu, the premises licence holders, including: 
a.  The description of the issues had been a bit exaggerated, especially in 
respect of vibration. The music was not like at a concert. The premises 
was a small space with two speakers. 
b.  The licence holder would close the premises in August for a month and 
do everything for the sound not to go out, but he would need help and 
advice to do that, then he would do everything required. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
1. In accordance with the principles of Section 100(a) of the Local 

Government Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting 
for this item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 

 
The Panel retired, with the legal representative and committee 
administrator, to consider the application further and then the meeting 
reconvened in public. 
 

2. The Chairman made the following statement: 
 

“We have listened to evidence presented to us. We have come to the 
following conclusion to fulfil the licensing objectives of public safety and 
the prevention of public nuisance. Live music to be removed from the 
licence. Therefore imposing conditions 18 and 19 as amended and 
conditions 24 to 30 and 32. Conditions 1 to 17 and 20 to 23 were 
accepted by all parties.” 
 

3. The Licensing Sub-Committee resolved: 
 (a)  to modify the conditions of the licence; and 
 (b)  to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence. 
 
 Conditions (in accordance with Annex 05): 
 
 (i)  Conditions 1 to 17, and 20 to 23 which are not disputed; and 
 (ii)  Conditions 18 and 19 as amended, plus Conditions 24 to 30 and 32 
 

Condition 18:  The management shall make subjective assessments 
of noise levels outside at the perimeter of the premises approximately 
hourly, whilst recorded music is provided to ensure that noise from the 
premises does not cause a disturbance to local residents. Records 
shall be kept of the times, dates and any issues discovered. These 
records shall be kept for six months. Records must be made available 
to an authorised officer of the Council or Police, upon request. Where 
monitoring by staff identifies that noise from the premises is audible at 
the perimeter, measures shall be taken to reduce this i.e. turning 

Page 63



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 6.7.2016 

 

- 42 - 

volume down. Section 177A of the Licensing Act 2003 does not apply 
to this condition. 

 
Condition 19:  All external doors and windows to be kept closed but 
not locked whilst recorded music is provided. 
 
Condition 24:  Live music shall not be provided at the premises at any 
time. Section 177A of the Licensing Act 2003 does not apply to this 
condition. 
 
Condition 25:  The windows of the premises shall be kept clear of 
obstruction at all times to enable view into the premises from outside. 
 
Condition 26:  The security shutters shall not be pulled down whilst 
people are still inside the building. 
 
Condition 27:  There shall always be a member of staff on the 
premises who knows how to use the CCTV system. 
 
Condition 28:  A noise limiting device shall be installed to any 
amplification equipment in use on the premises and shall be 
maintained in effective working order. The noise limiter should be set 
so that noise does not emanate from the premises so as to cause a 
nuisance to nearby properties. Section 177A of the Licensing Act 2003 
does not apply to this condition. 
 
Condition 29:  The noise limiter shall be recalibrated annually to 
ensure that the music volume does not exceed the level at which a 
noise nuisance to neighbours will occur. A copy of the calibration 
certificate shall be kept on the premises and made available to the 
Police or Council officer on request. 
 
Condition 30:  Speakers shall not be mounted to the walls or ceiling of 
the premises. Section 177A of the Licensing Act 2003 does not apply to 
this condition. 
 
Condition 32:  No open alcohol shall be taken outside of the licensed 
area. 

 
43   
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RECEIVED the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 8 June 2016. 
 
AGREED that the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 8 June 2016 be 
confirmed and signed as a correct record. 
 
 

Page 64


	Agenda
	3 FOOD & WINE EXPRESS, 349 BOWES ROAD, LONDON, N11 1AA  (REPORT NO. 60)
	LSC report Part 2
	LSC report Part 3 of 3

	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

